City of Geneva, lllinois _eroeerrv aporess:

Local Historic District & Landmarks 219-221 West State Street
Property Inventory Survey

PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (PIN):

GENERAL PROPERTY INFORMATION: 12-03-411-012

HISTORIC NAME: Grand Theater and Geneva Cafe

COMMON NAME: Unknown

DATE OF CONSTRUCTION: 1924

SIGNIFICANT ALTERATION DATES: Unknown

ARCHITECT: Unknown

BUILDER:
WILSON BROTHERS: [ AUGUST [ OSCAR [1BOTH

ARCHITECTURAL DATA:

ARCHITECTURAL STYLE: One-Part Commercial Block; Late Classical

LOCAL SIGNIFICANCE RATING:

OVERALL PLAN SHAPE: Complex, Multi-Tenant

[ ] significant
|z| Contributing

NUMBER OF STORIES: 1

FOUNDATION MATERIAL: Not Visible |:| Non-Contributing — Built After 1987

PRIMARY WALL MATERIAL(S): Brick |:| Non-Contributing — Reversible Alterations
FRONT PORCH: Commercial Entry |:| Non-Contributing — Irreversible Alterations
VISIBLE SIDE PORCH: N/A HISTORIC DISTRICT LOCATION:

ENTRY DOOR(S): Commercial Entry / Glass Paneled [w] Central Geneva NRHD

|:| North Geneva NRHD
WINDOW MATERIAL: Metal

|E| Local Geneva HD

WINDOW STYLE: Picture, Panel

|:| Not in HD / Individual Historic Landmark

PRIMARY ROOF FORM: Flat
NR DISTRICT SIGNIFICANCE RATING:

PRIMARY ROOF MATERIAL: Unknown

|E| Contributing

VISIBLE CHIMNEY: No |:| Non-Contributing
CHIMNEY MATERIAL: N/A |:| Not Applicable / Not in NR District
OTHER SIGNIFICANT ARCHITECTURAL FEATURES: HPC ACTION:

|:| Demolition Approved:

Other HPC Action: 11.7.23 New Wall Sign




City of Geneva, Illinois

Local Historic District & Landmarks
Property Inventory Survey

ADDITIONAL PROPERTY INFORMATION:

PROPERTY ADDRESS:

219-221 West State Street

BRIEF HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION:

The history of the Peterson Block traces the development of a
significant local landmark, particularly focusing on the Grand Theater
and the Geneva Café. The Peterson Block, which was heated by the
State Bank’s steam heating plant as early as 1907, was a key part of
the area’s commercial infrastructure. In 1914, John T. Peterson, the
property developer, began plans to erect a new building that would
house the relocated Grand Theater, which had been moved from the
Kendall Block, as well as new retail spaces. Fred Hilquist started
excavation for the project in December 1914, and by January 1915,
the old Fred Emde store was demolished to make way for the new
construction. Hilquist was awarded the contract to build the theater,
and by April 1915, the front of the Grand Theater was nearly
completed. The theater opened in May 1915, becoming a major
entertainment venue.

A. G. Johnsson, a local businessman, opened a restaurant in the
Peterson Block in October 1915, also planning to build a new cottage

SOURCES:

GHPC Case Studies; GHM Archives; 2016 Central North Geneva NRHP Update; 1869
Bird's Eye View of Geneva; Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps; Kane County Land
Records; Geneva, lllinois: A History of Its Times and Places; Geneva, lllinois: 150
LReminders of 150 Years: Wilson Brathers - Contractors & Builders1905-1931 by

CONTRIBUTING ACCESSORY STRUCTURES:

AS1 GENERAL DESCRIPTION:

AS2 GENERAL DESCRIPTION:

CONTRIBUTING LANDSCAPE FEATURES:

GENERAL DESCRIPTION:

1999
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	BRIEF HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION: The history of the Peterson Block traces the development of a significant local landmark, particularly focusing on the Grand Theater and the Geneva Café. The Peterson Block, which was heated by the State Bank’s steam heating plant as early as 1907, was a key part of the area’s commercial infrastructure. In 1914, John T. Peterson, the property developer, began plans to erect a new building that would house the relocated Grand Theater, which had been moved from the Kendall Block, as well as new retail spaces. Fred Hilquist started excavation for the project in December 1914, and by January 1915, the old Fred Emde store was demolished to make way for the new construction. Hilquist was awarded the contract to build the theater, and by April 1915, the front of the Grand Theater was nearly completed. The theater opened in May 1915, becoming a major entertainment venue.

A. G. Johnsson, a local businessman, opened a restaurant in the Peterson Block in October 1915, also planning to build a new cottage for his family nearby. The Peterson Block's role as a commercial hub grew throughout the early 20th century. However, a major setback occurred in January 1924 when a fire destroyed the Grand Theater and partially damaged the Geneva Café, which occupied the adjacent space. The café had previously been a barbershop run by A. G. Johnsson. After the fire, debris from the theater was cleared, and reconstruction began in February 1924. The rebuilding efforts included the excavation and restoration of the Geneva Café, which was a vital part of the local community.

By the end of 1924, the Peterson Block had been rebuilt, and the newly reconstructed building was occupied by the Grand Café & Restaurant, which took over the entire space. This new establishment operated 24 hours a day, seven days a week, and became a cornerstone of local life. The fire, while devastating, led to the renewal of the Peterson Block, ensuring its place as a key location in the community for years to come.

Today, the Peterson block continues to be a commercial site. It contributes to the historic district as the site of several key gathering places for 19th century residents, and as a piece of the economic evolution of the city.
	SOURCES: GHPC Case Studies; GHM Archives; 2016 Central North Geneva NRHP Update; 1869 Bird's Eye View of Geneva; Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps; Kane County Land Records; Geneva, Illinois: A History of Its Times and Places; Geneva, Illinois: 150 Reminders of 150 Years; Wilson Brothers - Contractors & Builders, 1905-1931 by Donald Wilson (2002)
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